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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF INDIANA
INDIANAPOLIS DIVISION

Master Docket No.
1:05-CV-00979-SEB-JMS

IN RE: READY MIXED CONCRETE
ANTITRUST LITIGATION

N N N N

THIS DOCUMENT RELATES TO: All Actions

DEFENDANT MA-RI-AL CORP.’S OBJECTIONS
TO PLAINTIFF'S INTERROGATORIES

Pursuant to Magistrate Jane Magnus-Stinson’s May 1, 2007 Order [Document # 325],
defendant MA-RI-AL hereby sets forth its objections to Plaintiffs’ First Set of Interrogatories to
Defendant MA-RI-AL as follows:

General Objections

1. MA-RI-AL objects to each and every of Plaintiffs’ First Interrogatories to the extent
that such interrogatories call for matters protected by attorney-client privilege, work product
immunity or any other applicable privilege or immunity, including, without limitation, privileges,
immunities or obligations of secrecy associated with MA-RI-AL’s communications with federal or
state law enforcement authorities and matters before the Grand Jury. In accordance with
Fed.R.Civ.P. 26(b)(5), MA-RI-AL will provide upon request a privilege log or other description of
documents or communications subject to privilege or immunity within a reasonable time. MA-RI-
AL fully reserves and does not waive any applicable privileges and immunities and will act in
accordance with all obligations of secrecy. This general objection is elaborated in specific

objections to particular interrogatories below.
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2. MA-RI-AL objects that the totality of Plaintiffs’ First Interrogatories are unduly
burdensome and that such interrogatories, taken as a whole, impose burdens or expenses which
outweigh their likely benefit and discovery should be limited accordingly pursuant to the principles
of Fed.R.Civ.P. 26(b)(2). Specifically, though without limitation, Plaintiffs’ First Interrogatories are
overbroad and unduly burdensome to the extent that they seek answers beyond the temporal and
geographic limitations imposed by the Court’s August 18, 2006 Entry on Motion to Compel and
Motion for Protective Order [Docket No. 201]. The provision of information beyond the temporal
and geographic scope defined by the August 18, 2006 Entry would impose an undue burden and
Plaintiffs’ First Interrogatories are overbroad to that extent.*

3. MA-RI-AL objects to Plaintiffs’ First Interrogatories to the extent that such
interrogatories call for matters which are neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the
discovery of admissible evidence. First, the interrogatories call for irrelevant information to the
extent that they exceed the temporal and geographic scope of discovery defined as relevant by the
Court’s August 18, 2006 Entry (See General Objection No. 2). Second, as more fully described in
the specific objections below, plaintiffs’ interrogatories relating to communications or meetings
between or among the defendants and/or other manufacturers of ready-mixed concrete are neither
relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence to the extent that

any such meetings or communications do not reflect or embody a conspiratorial agreement or

1 The August 18, 2006 Entry stated, in relevant part: “The Magistrate Judge agrees with the defendants that the time
period sought by the plaintiffs is too broad, at least without a specific showing by the plaintiffs’ experts that the
information from the additional years is relevant. However, it is only logical to expect that documents from a short time
before and after the Class Period likely are relevant to what occurred during the Class Period, and therefore the
Magistrate Judge will permit discovery from July 1, 1999, through May 31, 2005. As for the proper geographic scope,
the Magistrate Judge finds that the plaintiffs have not demonstrated at this time that it is appropriate to expand discovery
beyond the Central Indiana Area as defined in the Complaint.” Entry, Docket No. 201, p. 2. MA-RI-AL objects to
Plaintiffs’ unilateral definition of a “Central Indiana Area” as embracing ten counties is arbitrary and without factual
basis. Thus, MA-RI-AL’s use of the term “Central Indiana Area” in responding to Plaintiffs’ First Interrogatories does
not connote agreement with that definition for any purpose.

2



CEssd DD 09DIEEBBENIES Documeni 338-41 FilEde@b0B/(A007 PRgeS ®0225

agreements in violation of Section 1 of the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1, among the defendants.
Accordingly, MA-RI-AL objects to providing an account of any such communications or meetings
beyond those reflecting consummated, unlawful agreements among the defendants in violation of
Section 1.

4, MA-RI-AL objects to Plaintiffs’ First Interrogatories to the extent that the
interrogatories purport to require disclosure of trade secrets or other confidential research,
development or commercial information within the meaning of Fed.R.Civ.P. 26(c). Pursuant to the
agreed Protective Order entered March 2, 2006 [Docket No. 132], MA-RI-AL designates as
confidential the specific matters set forth below in response to particular interrogatories.

5. MA-RI-AL objects to each and every of Plaintiffs’ First Interrogatories to the extent
that answers would cause MA-RI-AL to violate any existing protective orders, confidentiality
agreements or license agreements, whether express or implied as a matter of custom and practice in
the industry, and whether entered by courts or administrative agencies or with third parties.

6. MA-RI-AL objects to each and every of Plaintiffs’ First Interrogatories to the extent
that they call for information reflecting or relating to any settlement communications, discussions or
negotiations, including, without limitation, communications with federal or state law enforcement
authorities, in that such information is neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the
discovery of admissible evidence under the Federal Rules of Evidence 408 and otherwise.
Additionally, any communications with law enforcement authorities not reflected in published plea,
amnesty or other agreements, or otherwise in the public domain, are subject to both statutory and
common law privileges and obligations of secrecy. Included, without limitation, among such
protected communications are matters occurring before the Grand Jury within the meaning of the

Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure. Accordingly, such matters are not properly discoverable.
3
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7. MA-RI-AL objects to each and every of Plaintiffs’ First Interrogatories to the extent
that such interrogatories incorporate plaintiffs’ purported “definitions” and “instructions” if and to
the extent that such definitions and instructions purport to require the provision of information
beyond that required by the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and applicable case law. MA-RI-AL
will respond to Plaintiffs’ First Interrogatories in accordance with the Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure, and not pursuant to plaintiffs’ definitions and instructions. Without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, further specific objections to plaintiffs’ definitions and instructions are
set forth below.

8. MA-RI-AL and its counsel continue diligently to pursue their investigation and
analysis of the facts. Neither that investigation nor discovery in this case are complete. Therefore,
plaintiffs’ interrogatories are in some respects premature and these answers to interrogatories are
being provided without prejudice to MA-RI-AL’s rights to add to, modify or otherwise change or
amend their responses at a later time, prior to trial. MA-RI-AL will supplement its answers to
interrogatories in accordance with, and to the extent required by, the Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure.

9. Inadvertent identification or production of privileged documents/information is not a
waiver of any applicable privilege.

Specific Objections
Objections to Definitions and Instructions - Definitions

1. “Defendants” means Defendants in the above-captioned case, their predecessors,
successors, subsidiaries, parents, branches, departments, divisions, or affiliates, including, without
limitation, any organization or entity in which any Defendant has management or controlling

interests, together with all present and former directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives,
4
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or any persons acting or purporting to act on behalf of any Defendant.

RESPONSE: MA-RI-AL incorporates by reference General Objections 1, 2, 3,and 7. MA-
RI-AL specifically objects to this definition to the extent that it refers to any person or entity other
than MA-RI-AL. Use of this definition would cause MA-RI-AL’s provision of information to
exceed the temporal and geographic scope of discovery defined as relevant by the Court’s August
18, 2006 Entry [Docket No. 201]. Accordingly, this definition is contrary to that Entry and calls for
matters which are neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible
evidence to the extent that it refers to any person, entity or organization other than MA-RI-AL. MA-
RI-AL additionally objects to this definition to the extent that it purports to require the provision of
any information beyond the possession, custody or control of MA-RI-AL. Specifically, without any
limitation, MA-RI-AL may not control “predecessors”, “successors”, “any organization or entity in
which any defendant has management” interests or “present and former directors, officers,
employees, agents, representatives or any person acting or purporting to act on behalf of any
defendant.”

2. “You” or “your” means your company or your predecessors, successors, subsidiaries,
parents, branches, departments, divisions, or affiliates, including, without limitation, any
organization or entity in which you have management or controlling interests, together with all
present and former directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives or any persons acting or
purporting to act on your behalf.

RESPONSE: MA-RI-AL incorporates by reference General Objections 1, 2, 3,and 7. MA-
RI-AL specifically objects to this definition to the extent that it refers to any person or entity other
than MA-RI-AL. Use of this definition would cause MA-RI-AL’s provision of information to

exceed the temporal and geographic scope of discovery defined as relevant by the Court’s August
5
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18, 2006 Entry [Docket No. 201]. Accordingly, this definition is contrary to that Entry and calls for
matters which are neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible
evidence to the extent that it refers to any person, entity or organization other than MA-RI-AL. MA-
RI-AL additionally objects to this definition to the extent that it purports to require the provision of
any information beyond the possession, custody or control of MA-RI-AL. Specifically, without any

limitation, MA-RI-AL may not control “predecessors”, “successors”, “any organization or entity in
which any defendant has management” interests or “present and former directors, officers,
employees, agents, representatives or any person acting or purporting to act on behalf of any
defendant.”

3. “Person” means, without limitation, any natural person, corporation, partnership,
proprietorship, joint venture, association, governmental entity (including, without limitation, any
governmental agency or political sub-division of any government), any group, or any other form of
public or private business or legal entity.

RESPONSE: MA-RI-AL incorporates by reference General Objections 1, 2, 3,4,5,6and 7.

MA-RI-AL specifically objects to this definition to the extent that it purports to require the
provision of information beyond that within MA-RI-AL’s possession, custody or control. Moreover,
to the extent that this definition purports to include governmental entities among relevant “persons”
with whom communications have occurred, certain such communications are subject to applicable

privileges, immunities and obligations of secrecy as detailed in response to certain specific

interrogatories below.
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4, “Communication” means, without limitation, oral or written communication of all
kinds, such as correspondence, exchanges of written or recorded information, face to face meetings,
electronic, facsimile or telephone. The phrase “communication between” is defined to include
instances where one person addresses another person even if the other person does not respond.

RESPONSE: MA-RI-AL incorporates by reference General Objections 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7,
and 8. MA-RI-AL specifically objects to this definition, and to the interrogatories in which it is
incorporated, to the extent that it would require identification or production of documents, if any,
protected from production by the Fifth Amendment’s privilege against self-incrimination, U.S.
Const. Amend. V. See United States v. Doe, 465 U.S. 605, 104 S.Ct. 1237 (1984). MA-RI-AL
specifically objects that, to the extent this definition refers to correspondence, exchanges of written
or recorded information or electronic or facsimile transmissions, any such written or documented
communications are more appropriately obtained by requests for production under Federal Rule of
Civil Procedure 34 (which plaintiffs have served) rather than by interrogatory. To this extent,
Plaintiffs” First Interrogatories are overbroad and unduly burdensome.

MA-RI-AL also objects to the inclusion of “instances where one person addresses another
person even if the other person does not respond” as overbroad, unduly burdensome and irrelevant.
Additionally, insofar as this definition relates to interrogatories concerning agreements in restraint of
trade, MA-RI-AL denies, as a matter of law, that any such agreement can be inferred from silence
alone. Accordingly, this definition also calls for matters which are neither relevant nor reasonably
calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence to that extent.

5. “Meeting” means, without limitation, any assembly, convocation, encounter, or
contemporaneous presence of two or more persons for any purpose, regardless if planned, arranged

or scheduled.
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RESPONSE: MA-RI-AL incorporates by reference General Objections 1, 2, 3,4, 5, 6, 7 and
8. MA-RI-AL specifically objects that this definition is overbroad, unduly burdensome and, as it
relates to any meetings between or among the defendants, calls for the provision of information
which is neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence.
The sole relevant meetings are those where conspiratorial agreements in violation of the Sherman
Act were concluded among the defendants.

6. “Employee” means, without limitation, current and former officers, directors, agents,
representatives, executives, managers, sales personnel, secretaries, clerical staff or any other person
employed for any reason.

RESPONSE: MA-RI-AL incorporates by reference General Objections 1, 3, and 7. MA-
RI-AL specifically objects to the extent that this definition calls for the provision of information
beyond the possession, custody or control of MA-RI-AL.

7. “Document” has the same full meaning as construed by the Federal Rules of Civil
Procedure.

RESPONSE: MA-RI-AL incorporates by reference General Objection 1. MA-RI-AL
specifically objects to this definition, and to the interrogatories in which it is incorporated, to the
extent that identification or production of responsive documents, if any, is protected by the Fifth
Amendment’s privilege against self-incrimination, U.S. Const., Amend. V. See United States v.
Doe, 465 U.S. 605, 104 S.Ct. 1237 (1984).

8. “Relate to” or “Relating to” means, without limitation, the concepts: refer to, discuss,
describe, reflect, deal with, pertain to, analyze, evaluate, estimate, constitute, study, survey, project,

assess, record, summarize, criticize, report, comment, or otherwise involve, in whole or in part.
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RESPONSE: MA-RI-AL incorporates by reference General Objection 7. MA-RI-AL
specifically objects to this definition as creating vague and ambiguous interrogatories and as using
the referenced terms in a manner contrary to their plain meaning. The effect, in the context of
particular interrogatories, is to create vague, open-ended inquiries and to improperly attempt to shift
to MA-RI-AL the burden of identifying what information is sought by particular interrogatories,
Accordingly, MA-RI-AL will respond in accordance with the plain meaning of the terms “relate to”
or “relating to”, and not in accordance with plaintiff’s definition.

9. “Or” is used in its inclusive sense and shall be construed so as to require the broadest
possible response. If, for example, a request calls for information about “A” or “B,” you should
produce all information about A, all information about B and all information about A and B. (In
other words, “or” should be read as “and/or.”)

RESPONSE: MA-RI-AL incorporates by reference General Objection 7. MA-RI-AL
specifically objects to this definition as creating vague and ambiguous interrogatories and as using
the referenced term in a manner contrary to its plain meaning. The effect is to create vague, open-
ended interrogatories and improperly to attempt to shift to MA-RI-AL the burden of specifying what
information is sought by a specific interrogatory. Accordingly, MA-RI-AL will respond in
accordance with the plain meaning of the word *“or”, and not in accordance with plaintiffs’
definition.

10. “ldentify” or “Identification,” when used in reference to a firm, partnership,
corporation, proprietorship, association or other entity person (as previously defined) means to state
that person’s full name, address and telephone number (designate as current or last known), the legal

form of the entity and the current officers, directors or chief executive.
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RESPONSE: MA-RI-AL incorporates by reference General Objections 1, 2, 3, 6, 7 and 8.
MA-RI-AL specifically objects that this definition’s request for contact information (“address and
telephone number”) is overbroad and irrelevant. The referenced persons or entities should be
contacted through appropriate counsel. MA-RI-AL also objects that the terms “current officers,
directors or chief executive” of the referenced persons or entities may include matters which are
neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence when used
in connection with specific interrogatories, as specifically identified below.

11. “ldentify” or “Identification” when used in reference to a document, means to state
the type of document (e.g. letter, memorandum, telegram) or some other means of identifying it, its
date, author, addressees and custodian. If any such document was, but is no longer, in your
possession or subject to your control, state its disposition.

RESPONSE: MA-RI-AL incorporates by reference General Objections 1, 2, 3, 6, 7 and 8.
MA-RI-AL also incorporates by reference its specific objections to plaintiffs’ definition of
“document” as described above. MA-RI-AL specifically objects that to the extent the identification
of documents is relevant, any such relevant, non-privileged documents will be produced either in
response to Plaintiffs’ requests for production of documents or in response to Plaintiffs’ First
Interrogatories, pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 33(d). In either instance, however, the
identity of the document is plain from the face of the document itself, and this definition is thus
superfluous and unduly burdensome. MA-RI-AL additionally objects to the last sentence of this
definition to the extent that it calls for the provision of information beyond the possession, custody

or control of MA-RI-AL.

10



CEssd DH009DIEEBENIES Document 3398-41 FilEde@b0B/(A007 PRggd 1bioR25

12. “ldentify” or “Identification,” when used in reference to an individual person, means
to state that person’s full legal name, residence address and telephone number (designate as current
or last known), position and business affiliation and business address and telephone number
(designate as current or last known).

RESPONSE: MA-RI-AL incorporates by reference General Objections 1, 2, 3, 6, 7 and 8.
MA-RI-AL specifically objects that this definition’s request for contact information (“residence
address and telephone number (designate as current or last known)... and business address and
telephone number (designate as current or last known))”, is overbroad and irrelevant. The
referenced individuals should be contacted through appropriate counsel.

13.  “Identify” or “Identification,” when used in reference to a communication or meeting,
means to identify all persons involved in such communication or meeting, the date of such
communication, all documents related to such communication or meeting (including, without
limitation, all documents recording or summarizing such communication or meeting) and any
actions taken by you as a result of such communication or meeting.

RESPONSE: MA-RI-AL incorporates by reference General Objections 1 through 8,
inclusive. MA-RI-AL also incorporates by reference its specific objections to plaintiffs’ definitions
of “document”, “communication” and “meeting,” as described above. Insofar as the definition calls
for “all documents related to such communication or meeting (including, without limitation, all
documents regarding or summarizing such communication or meeting)”, any such relevant, non-
privileged documents will be produced in response to plaintiffs’ requests for production or in
response to Plaintiffs’ First Interrogatories under Fed.R.Civ.P. 33(d). Accordingly, this definition is

superfluous and unduly burdensome to that extent.

11



CEssd DD 09DIEEBENIES Document 3398-41 FilEde@b0B/(A007 PRggd 20225

14.  “Date” means the exact day, month and year, if ascertainable, or the best available
approximation, including any relationship to other known events (designate whether exact or
approximate).

RESPONSE: MA-RI-AL incorporates by reference General Objection 7.

15. “Ready-Mixed Concrete” means a product comprised of cement, sand, gravel, water,
and occasionally additional additives.

RESPONSE: MA-RI-AL denies that this is an adequate, complete or accurate definition of
ready-mixed concrete. “Ready-mixed concrete” is a colloquial term that embraces a wide variety of
products, applications and services that cannot be adequately or accurately described as a single
product. MA-RI-AL will answer plaintiffs’ interrogatories in accordance with their understanding
of the diversity of products, applications and services embraced by the term “ready-mixed concrete”.

Instructions

1. Unless otherwise noted, these interrogatories require responses for the time period
January 1, 1995 to the present.

RESPONSE: MA-RI-AL incorporates by reference General Objections 2 and 3. MA-RI-
AL specifically objects to each and every of plaintiffs’ interrogatories as irrelevant, overbroad and
unduly burdensome to the extent that they purport to require the provision of information beyond the
temporal or geographic scope of discovery defined as relevant by the Court’s August 18, 2006 Entry
[Docket No. 201].

2. If you refuse to respond to any interrogatories based on a claim of privilege, pursuant
to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 26(b)(5), provide a statement of the claim of privilege and all
facts relied on in support of that claim, including, the parties involved, the dates involved, the

relevant subject matter of the privileged material, any documents supporting the privileged
12



CEssd DD 09PIEEBENIES Document 3398-41 FilEde@b0B/(A007 PRggd 30225

information, specifying the dates, authors, recipients, title and subject matter, and present location of
any documents involved. In the case of attorney work product privilege, also identify the litigation
in connection with which the work product was prepared.

RESPONSE: MA-RI-AL incorporates by reference General Objections 1, 6 and 7. MA-RI-
AL will support its privilege claims as required by the Federal Rules, applicable case law, and not in
accordance with plaintiffs’ instruction.

3. If you answer any interrogatory by reference to business records pursuant to Federal
Rule of Civil Procedure 33(d) and as that term is defined under the Federal Rules of Evidence,
identify such records by bates number and the name of the employee certifying the documents as
business records for purposes of answering the interrogatory.

RESPONSE: MA-RI-AL incorporates by reference General Objections 1 and 7. MA-RI-
AL will identify any documents produced in response to Plaintiffs’ First Interrogatories with the
degree of specificity required by Fed.R.Civ.P. 33(d), and not in accordance with plaintiffs’
instruction. Specifically, there is no requirement in the Rule that the documents be identified “by
bates number and the name of the employee certifying the documents as business records for
purposes of answering the interrogatory.”

Interrogatories

3. Identify each employee who testified for, gave an oral statements to, or produced any
documents, written statements or data to any employee, agent, agency, department, or committee of
the United States, any State, or the European Commission, including any testimony before a grand
jury, relating to Ready-Mixed Concrete and as to each person state:

a. The date testimony or other oral statement was given or documents produced;

13
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b. The employee, agent, agency, department, or committee receiving the testimony, oral

statement or documents; and

C. A description of the testimony, oral statement or documents.

ANSWER: MA-RI-AL incorporates by reference General Objections 1 through 8, inclusive.
MA-RI-AL specifically objects that the sole relevant testimony or statements are any given in
connection with the U.S. Department of Justice’s investigation of ready-mixed concrete producers in
Indianapolis. Moreover, any such statements or testimony given in the context of the government’s
criminal investigation are subject to common law privilege and/or subject to obligations of secrecy
under the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure and applicable case law. Accordingly, MA-RI-AL
objects to this interrogatory. Similarly, with respect to any documents provided by MA-RI-AL to
the government under search warrants, grand jury subpoenas or otherwise, case law establishes that
production of the documents, segregated and denominated as such, is objectionable and MA-RI-AL
objects to this interrogatory, to that extent, on this basis as well.

MA-RI-AL respectfully declines to answer this interrogatory on the basis of the Fifth
Amendments privilege against self-incrimination. U.S. Const., Amend. V. Under principles stated
by the Supreme Court in United States v. Kordel, 397 U.S. 1, 90 S.Ct. 763 (1970), and subject to and
without the foregoing general and specific objections, MA-RI-AL objects that any response to this
interrogatory for and on behalf of the company should be deferred until such time as it is no longer

in potential criminal jeopardy under State law or otherwise.

10. Identify each actual or proposed understanding or agreement between any
manufacturers of Ready-Mixed Concrete relating to prices, pricing, production or inventory levels of

Ready-Mixed Concrete and state as to each such actual or proposed understanding or agreement:
14
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a. The identity of the participants and all persons with knowledge thereof;

b. When such understanding or agreement was entered into;

C. Where such understanding or agreement was entered into;

d. The terms of such understanding or agreement; and

e. When, how and which of your officers, directors or employees discovered the

existence of such understanding or agreement.

ANSWER: MA-RI-AL incorporates by reference General Objections 1 through 8, inclusive.
MA-RI-AL specifically objects to the extent that this interrogatory seeks information with respect to
“proposed” or unconsummated understandings or agreements, or to the extent that it refers to any
meetings or communications other than any such meetings or communications as reflect or embody
agreements in violation of Section 1 of the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1. To the extent that any
responsive meetings or communications do not reflect or embody an agreement among defendants in
violation of Section 1, they are neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the admissible
evidence. Additionally, provision of any such information beyond concluded agreements in
violation of Section 1 among the defendants would impose an undue burden on defendants in
relation to the factors made relevant by Fed.R.Civ.P. 26(b)(2)(C)(iii). MA-RI-AL further objects
that this interrogatory imposes an undue burden because certain responsive information is more
appropriately obtained by deposition.

MA-RI-AL specifically objects to this interrogatory to the extent that providing a full answer
would compromise the attorney-client privilege, work product or trial preparation immunity and/or
common law privileges or statutory obligations of secrecy associated with MA-RI-AL’s cooperation
with the government’s criminal investigation of the ready-mixed concrete industry. Without limiting

the generality of the foregoing, MA-RI-AL states the communications made to government
15
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representatives, or to the grand jury in connection with the government’s criminal investigation of
the ready-mixed concrete industry, are subject to privilege and to secrecy obligations imposed with
respect to matters occurring before the grand jury under the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.
Accordingly, MA-RI-AL specifically objects to the provision of any information based on such
sources in response to this interrogatory.

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing general and specific objections, MA-RI-AL
respectfully declines to answer this interrogatory on the basis of the Fifth Amendments privilege
against self-incrimination. U.S. Const., Amend. V. Under principles stated by the Supreme Court in
United States v. Kordel, 397 U.S. 1, 90 S.Ct. 763 (1970), and subject to and without the foregoing
general and specific objections, MA-RI-AL objects that any response to this interrogatory for and on
behalf of the company should be deferred until such time as it is no longer in potential criminal

jeopardy under State law or otherwise.

11. Identify and describe any meetings or communications between you and any
employee or any other defendant or manufacturer of Ready-Mixed Concrete including those relating
to price, pricing, price increase announcements, terms and conditions of sales, margins or market
share, discounts, production levels, inventory, customers, auctions, reverse auctions, bidding events,
or sales, and for each such meeting or communication:

a. Provide the date and location of the meeting or communication;

b. Identify the person(s) who initiated, called, organized, attended or participated in the

meeting or communication;

C. Describe the subject matter discussed and any information you provided or received;

d. Describe every action taken by you as a result of the meeting or communication; and
16
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e. Identify all persons with knowledge relating to the meeting or communication.
ANSWER: MA-RI-AL incorporates by reference General Objections 1 through 8, inclusive.
MA-RI-AL specifically objects to the extent that this interrogatory seeks information with respect to
“proposed” or unconsummated understandings or agreements, or to the extent that it refers to any
meetings or communications other than any such meetings or communications as reflect or embody
agreements in violation of Section 1 of the Sherman Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1. To the extent that any
responsive meetings or communications do not reflect or embody an agreement among defendants in
violation of Section 1, they are neither relevant nor reasonably calculated to lead to the admissible
evidence. Additionally, provision of any such information beyond concluded agreements in
violation of Section 1 among the defendants would impose an undue burden on defendants in
relation to the factors made relevant by Fed.R.Civ.P. 26(b)(2)(C)(iii). MA-RI-AL further objects
that this interrogatory imposes an undue burden because certain responsive information is more
appropriately obtained by deposition. MA-RI-AL further objects that this interrogatory imposes an
undue burden and could feasibly require a description of each and every communication between an
employee of MA-RI-AL and an employee of a manufacturer of Ready-Mixed Concrete regarding the
prices of MA-RI-AL ’s products, or a description of each and every communication between co-
employees of MA-RI-AL regarding pricing of MA-RI-AL ’s products.

MA-RI-AL specifically objects to this interrogatory to the extent that providing a full answer
would compromise the attorney-client privilege, work product or trial preparation immunity and/or
common law privileges or statutory obligations of secrecy associated with MA-RI-AL’s corporation
with the government’s criminal investigation of the ready-mixed concrete industry. Without limiting
the generality of the foregoing, MA-RI-AL states that communications made to government

representatives, or to the grand jury in connection with the government’s criminal investigation of
17
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the ready-mixed concrete industry, are subject to privilege and to secrecy obligations imposed with
respect to matters occurring before the grand jury under the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.
Accordingly, MA-RI-AL specifically objects to the provision of any information based on such
sources in response to this interrogatory.

Subject to and without waiving the foregoing general and specific objections, MA-RI-AL
respectfully declines to answer this interrogatory on the basis of the Fifth Amendments privilege
against self-incrimination. U.S. Const., Amend. V. Under principles stated by the Supreme Court in
United States v. Kordel, 397 U.S. 1, 90 S.Ct. 763 (1970), and subject to and without the foregoing
general and specific objections, MA-RI-AL objects that any response to this interrogatory for and on
behalf of the company should be deferred until such time as it is no longer in potential criminal

jeopardy under State law or otherwise.

12, Identify the source, by name and by bates number, of each document produced to
plaintiffs in this litigation.

ANSWER: MA-RI-AL incorporates by reference General Objections 1 through 8,
inclusive. Pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 33(d), MA-RI-AL states that it is producing
documents in response to plaintiffs’ requests for production of documents, which include any file
jackets, labels or other organizational designations associated with such documents as kept in the
ordinary course of business. Beyond this, MA-RI-AL specifically objects that this interrogatory is

unduly burdensome and overbroad in relation to the factors made relevant by Fed.R.Civ.P.

26(b)(2)(C)(iii).
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As to objections:

By: /s/ Charles R. Sheeks
Charles R. Sheeks (#10513-49)
SHEEKS & NIXON, LLP
8202 Clearvista Parkway, Suite 2A
Indianapolis, Indiana 46256
Telephone: (317) 577-2615
Facsimile: (317) 577-2781
crslaw@sbcglobal.net

Attorneys for Defendants, Ricky Beaver, Chris
Beaver, MA-RI-AL Corp. Beaver Materials
Corp., and Beaver Gravel Corp.
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on May 17, 2007, a copy of the foregoing Objections was filed
electronically. Notice of this filing will be sent to the following party by operation of the Court’s
electronic filing system. Parties may access this filing through the Court’s system.

Robert K. Stanley
rkstanley@bakerd.com
beth.walpole@bakerd.com
sharon.franklin@bakerd.com

John R. Price
john@johnpricelaw.com

Irwin B. Levin
ilevin@cohenandmalad.com
ccox@cohenandmalad.com
tasbury@cohenandmalad.com

Frederick William Schultz
fschultz@kiva.net
djenkins@Kkiva.net

David Bruce Vorneham
dvornehm@drewrysimmons.com

Jerry Avan Garau
jgarau@fqggplaw.com
tlux@fggplaw.com

Jason R. Burke
jburke@hopperblackwell.com
kellis@hopperblackwell.com
dbullington@hopperblackwell.com

Jay P. Kennedy
ipk@kgrlaw.com

Offer Korin
okorin@katzkorn.com
cwright@Kkatzkorin.com

John M. Mead
jmead@indylegal.net
bcallahan@indylegal.net
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Michael David Hausfeld
mhausfeld@cmht.com

J. Lee McNeely
jImcneely@msth.com

emtindall@msth.com

Jennifer Stephens Love
jlove@fggplaw.com

ipaulsel@fggplaw.com

Gene R. Leeuw
gleeuw@indylegal.net

Judy L. Woods
jwoods@boselaw.com

Itoschlog@boselaw.com
pvink@boselaw.com
sowens@boselaw.com

G. Daniel Kelley, Jr
daniel.kelley@icemiller.com
chris.webb@icemiller.com

Thomas J. Grau
tgrau@drewrysimmons.com
nleach@drewrysimmons.com

Betsy Katherine Greene
bkgreene@kiva.com
dianapa@kiva.com

William N. Riley
wriley@price-law.com
eamos@price-law.com




Henry J. Price
hprice@price-law.com
dbortz@price-lw.com
imiller@price-law.com
kcavosie@price-law.com
mdabio@price-law.com
sbissonnette@price-law.com

Robert S. Schachter
rschachter@zsz.com

Geoffrey Mitchell Grodner
gmgrodne@mcgb.com
mecornwe@mcgb.com

Arend J. Abel
Aabel@conheandmalad.com

George W. Hopper
ghopper@hopperblackwell.com
mroth@hopperblackwell.com

Marshall S. Hanley
mhanley@fggplaw.com
alarmore@fqggplaw.com

Stephen M. Badger
Sbadger@mitlitigation.com
Dlawyer@mtlitigation.com

Thomas Eugene Mixdorf
thomas.mixdorf@icemiller.com
maryellen.dugan@icemiller.com

James A. L. Buddenbaum
jbuddenbaum@parrlaw.com
ipratt@parrlaw.com

Edward Price Steegman
ed.steegmann@icemiller.com
chris.webb@icemiller.com
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James H. Ham, IlI
jhham@bakerd.com

brsmith@bakerd.com
michelle.hayes@bakerd.com

Anthony D. Shapiro
tony@hbsslaw.com

Joseph C. Kohn
jkohn@kohnswift.com

Joseph M. Leone
jleone@drewrysimmons.com

Michael B. Hyman
jjanes@muchshelist.com

Bernard Persky
bpersky@labaton.com
klerner@labaton.com

Joseph R. Whatley, Jr
jwhatley@whatleydrake.com
ecf@whatleydrake.com

William E. Hoese
whoese@kohnswift.com

Robert J. Schuckit
rschuckit@schuckitlaw.com
asmith@schuckitlaw.com

Ronald J. Waicukauski
rwaicukauski@price-law.com
tulm@price-law.com

Steve W. Berman
steve@hbsslaw.com
heatherw@hbsslaw.com

Scott D. Gilchrist
sgilchrist@cohenandmalad.com
sgilchrist53@yahoo.com




Bryan Harold Babb
bbabb@boselaw.com
cosman@boselaw.com

Cathleen L. Nevin
cnevin@katzkorin.com
Jlequellec@katzkorin.com

Kathy Lynn Osborn
klosborn@bakerd.com
tina.robinson@bhbakerd.com

Eric S. Pavlack
epavlack@cohenandmalad.com

Richard E. Shevitz
rshevitz@cohneandmalad.com
cmeadows@cohenandmalad.com

Anthony Parker Aaron
Anthony.aaron@icemiller.com
Cheryl.croghan@icemiller.com

Shannon D. Landreth
slandreth@mitlitigation.com
pmcginnis@mtlitigation.com

Curtis T. Jones
cjones@boselaw.com

Jamie Ranah Kendall
jkendall@price-law.com
eamos@price-law.com

Brady J. Rife
bjrife@msth.com

Robert J. Wozniak, Jr
rwozniak@muchshelist.com

Daniel R. Karon
karon@qgsk-law.com
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Vincent J. Esades

vesades@heinsmills.com
ikovarik@heinsmills.com
jservais@heinsmills.com

Troy Jerome Hutchinson
thutchinson@heinsmills.com

Isaac Lee Deil
dslawkc@aol.com

Gregory P. Hansel
ghansel@preti.com
jwade@preti.com

kdonovan@preti.com

Theresa Lee Groh
tgroh@magsglaw.com
cpence@mgsglaw.com
svaaler@mgsglaw.com

John Charles Murdock
jmurdock@magsglaw.com

Jeffrey L. Kodroff
jkodroff@srk-law.com

Jeffrey J. Corrigan
jcorrigan@srk-law.com

Jay S. Cohen
jcohen@srk-law.com

Hollis L. Salzman
hsalzman@glrslaw.com

James R. Malone, Jr
jamesmalone@chimicles.com

Michael D. Gottsch
michaelgottsch@chimicles.com

Bryan L. Clobes
bclobes@millerfaucher.com




Mark Kevin Gray
mkgrayatty@aol.com

Matthew Lee White
mattwhiteatty@aol.com

Justin M. Tarshis
jtarshis@zsz.com
dlanier@zsz.com

Stephen E. Connolly
sconnolley@sbclasslaw.com

Barry C. Barnett
bbarnett@susmangodfrey.com
dmiller@susmangodfrey.com

Kendall S. Zylstra
zylstra@mercusauerbach.com

Stewart M. Weltman
Sweltman@weltmanlawfirm.com

Lawrence Walner
walner@walnerclassaction.com

Mindee Jill Reuben
reuben@wka-law.com

Randall Batchelder Weill
rweill@preti.com

W. Joseph Bruckner
wijbruckner@Ilocklaw.com
hnpotteiger@locklaw.com

Yvonne M. Flaherty
vmflagherty@locklaw.com
brgilles@locklaw.com

Jonathan Bridges
jbridges@susmangodfrey.com
rmcclary@susmangodfrey.com
nfenner@susmangodfrey.com
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Steven D. Susman
ssusman@susmangodfrey.com
ddefranco@susmangodfrey.com

Eugene A. Spector
espector@srk-law.com

Robert J. Bonsignore
rbonsignore@aol.com

Daniel Jay Mogin
dmogin@moginlaw.com

Lisa Jean Frisella
dmogin@moginlaw.com

Chad Michael McManamy
chad@moginlaw.com

Patrick B. Omilian
pomilian@mcgbh.com
mmccutch@mcgb.com

Christopher Allan Moeller
cmoeller@price-law.com
jnance@price-law.com

Steven E. Runyan
ser@kgrlaw.com

Frank John VVondrak
frank.vondrak@usdoj.gov

Eric Lee Schleef
eric.schleef@usdoj.gov

Jonathan Asher Epstein
jonathan.epstein@usdoj.gov

Michael Wesley Boomgarden
michael.boomgarden@usdoj.gov

Casandra Murphy
cmurphy@sbclasslaw.com




Warren T. Burns
whburns@susmangodfrey.com
nfenner@susmangodfrey.com

Matthew Davison Lamkin
matthew.lamkin@bakerd.com
sharon.penn@bakerd.com

Chris C. Gair
cgair@jenner.com

Lara E. FitzSimmons
Ifitzsimmons@jenner.com

Jean Karole James
ijjanes@muchshelist.com

Vess Allen Miller
vmiller@cohenandmalad.com

Garrick B. Pursley
gpursley@susmangodfrey.com

I hereby certify that on May 17, 2007, a copy of the foregoing Objections was mailed, by
first class mail, postage prepaid, and properly addressed to the following:

Steven A. Asher

Attorney at Law

1845 Walnut Street, Suite 1100
Philadelphia, PA 19103

Kathleen C. Chavez
Attorney at Law

416 S. Second Street
Geneva, IL 60134

Robert Foote
Attorney at Law

416 S. Second Street
Geneva, IL 60134
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Samuel D. Heins
Attorney at Law

3550 IDS Center

80 South Eighth Street
Minneapolis, MN 55402

Ellen Meriwether
Attorney at Law

One Logan Square

18" & Cherry Streets
Suite 1700
Philadelphia, PA 19103

Marvin Miller
Attorney at Law

30 North LaSalle Street
Suite 3200

Chicago, IL 60602
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Krishna B. Narine
Attorney at Law

7839 Mo gomery Avenue
Elkins Park, PA 19027

L. Kendall Satterfield
Attorney at Law

1050 30™ Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20007

Jennifer Sprengel
Attorney at Law

30 North LaSalle Street
Suite 3200

Chicago, IL 60602

United States of America

US Department of Justice
Antitrust Division

209 S. LaSalle Street, Suite 600
Chicago, IL 60604

Richard M. Volin
Attorney at Law

1050 30™ Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20007

/s/ Charles R. Sheeks
Charles R. Sheeks
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